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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report and financialesnhents (which comprise the statement of compsien
income, statement of changes in equity, statemefinancial position, statement of cash flows ahd t
related notes, 1 to 19) for Morgan Stanley B.Ve (tB@ompany”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit for the year, after tax, was €4,993,02013: €4,576,000).
During the year, no dividends were paid or propd2ed 3: €nil).
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is the issteof financial instruments including notes, cétifes
and warrants (“Structured Notes”) and the hedgifnth® obligations arising pursuant to such issuance

The Company was incorporated under Dutch law onefpteSnber 2001 and has its statutory seat in
Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The business offich@fCompany is at Luna Arena, Herikerbergweg 238,
1101 CM, Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and adlitig entity is Morgan Stanley, which, togethetthwi
the Company and Morgan Stanley’s other subsidiadettakings, form the “Morgan Stanley Group”.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

There have not been any significant changes irCdmapany’s principal activity, financing or investnte
activity in the year under review and no significahange is expected.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2014, global market and economic conditidisplayed a continued but choppy improvement from
2013, characterised by continued global centrakl@tommodations, low inflation, geopolitical teoss,
and sharply lower oil prices during the final mantf the year. The United States (“US”) economlyiclv
started 2014 with a weather-impacted first quadigsline in gross domestic product (“GDP”), endeel th
year with annualised GDP growth. The Eurozone ewon by contrast, stalled in the second quarter
before showing some signs of improvement in thesedalf of the year, as the annexation of the €am
region in Ukraine by Russia and conflict in Eastdikraine raised anxiety and tensions which weighed
regional economies. In the United Kingdom (“UK'GDP growth continued to accelerate, while the
Japanese economy saw substantial volatility sudimgna national sales tax hike, resulting in a GDP
growth rate near zero for all of 2014. In Chirlee government continued reforms to change thetstric
of the Chinese economy, accepting a somewhat &sd growth pace as deleveraging is pursued, but
targeted easing measures by the Chinese centiakb@ported a gain in real GDP in 2014.

The statement of comprehensive income for the igaet out on page 8. The Company made a profit
before income tax of €6,658,000 in the current yaarincrease of €564,000 from the prior year duant
increase in the average level of Structured Natessuance during the current year on which managéem
charges are received. Management charges are teeflda ‘Other income’ in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Net gains on financial instruments classified akl Her trading and net losses on financial instrotee
designated at fair value through profit or lossseffto €nil, which is consistent with the Company’s
function and the prior year. The Company hedgeStitsctured Notes with derivatives, loans and pickpa
equity securities contracts. Net losses on findmestruments designated at fair value throughipmfloss

of €185,570,000 represents fair value movementsttferyear on the issued Structured Notes, prepaid
equity securities contracts and loans designatéairatalue (2013: €509,271,000). This loss hasearias a
result of unfavourable fair value movements onahsets underlying certain Structured Notes isshad t
are hedged by derivatives classified as held &atitig, on which a corresponding gain of €185,570 J&s
been recognised (2013: €509,271,000).



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Interest expense and interest income primarilyteeia the yield payable on Convertible Preferredifyg
Certificates (“CPECSs"), and interest receivableadnan to another Morgan Stanley Group undertaking.

The statement of financial position for the Compéanget out on page 10. The Company’s total asse3$
December 2014 are €8,081,802,000, a decrease ¢8G8800 or 1% when compared to 31 December
2013. Total liabilities of €8,051,732,000 represantiecrease of €93,801,000 or 1%, when compared to
total liabilities at 31 December 2013. These movethere primarily attributable to the value of sdu
Structured Notes and the related hedging instrusnkald at 31 December 2014. Structured Notes have
decreased since 31 December 2013 as a result afitieet and fair value movements in the year plytia
offset by new issuances. The decrease in the wdligsued Structured Notes has resulted in a naedse

in the value of the related hedging instruments.

The performance of the Company is included in thsuits of the Morgan Stanley Group which are
disclosed in the Morgan Stanley Group’s Annual Repa Form 10-K to the US Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Morgan Stanley Group manages ispkeformance indicators on a global basis but in
consideration of individual legal entities. Forsthieason, the Company’s Directors believe that ighog
further performance indicators for the Company lfitseould not enhance an understanding of the
development, performance or position of the busidghe Company.

The risk management section below sets out the @oyp and the Morgan Stanley Group's policiester t
management of liquidity and cash flow risk and osignificant business risks.

Risk management

Risk is an inherent part of the Company’s busireswity. The Company seeks to identify, assess)iton

and manage each of the various types of risk iragbin its business activities, in accordance wéfirgd
policies and procedures. The Company has develigedvn risk management policy framework, which
leverages the risk management policies and proesdafrthe Morgan Stanley Group, and which include
escalation to the Company’s Board of Directors sm@ppropriate senior management personnel of the
Company as well as oversight through the CompalBgard of Directors.

Set out below is an overview of the Company’s peticfor the management of financial risk and other
significant business risks. More detailed quaiiatand quantitative disclosures about the Commany’
management of and exposure to financial risksradleided in note 14 to the financial statements.

Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk that a change inléwel of one or more market prices, rates, indigagplied
volatilities (the price volatility of the underlygninstrument implied from option prices), corredais or
other market factors, such as liquidity, will resallosses for a position or portfolio.

Market risk management policies and proceduresi®iCompany are consistent with those of the Morgan
Stanley Group and include escalation to the CompaBpard of Directors and appropriate senior
management personnel.

The Company manages the market risk associateditwitrading activities at both a trading divisiand
an individual product level.

It is the policy and objective of the Company robe exposed to market risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising wharborrower, counterparty or issuer does not niset i
financial obligations to the Company.

Credit risk management policies and procedureshi®rCompany are consistent with those of the Morgan
Stanley Group and include escalation to the ComjpaBpard of Directors and appropriate senior
management personnel.



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk exposure is managed on a global basisia consideration of each significant legal entit
within the Morgan Stanley Group. The credit risk nagement policies and procedures establish the
framework for identifying, measuring, monitoringdaoontrolling credit risk whilst ensuring transpacg

of material credit risks, ensuring compliance waftablished limits and escalating risk concentnatito
appropriate senior management.

Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity and funding risk refers to the risk tthe Company will be unable to finance its operatidoe to
a loss of access to the capital markets or diffjcun liquidating its assets. Liquidity and fundinisk also
encompasses the Company’s ability to meet its @i@nobligations without experiencing significant
business disruption or reputational damage that thi@aten its viability as a going concern.

The primary goal of the Morgan Stanley Group’s ilitity and funding risk management framework is to
ensure that the Morgan Stanley Group, includingGbenpany, have access to adequate funding across a
wide range of market conditions. The frameworkiésigned to enable the Morgan Stanley Group td fulf

its financial obligations and support the executidrihe Company’s business strategies. The Conipany
capital management framework is further descrilmembite 18.

The Company continues to actively manage its clagitd liquidity position to ensure adequate resesirc
are available to support its activities, to enable withstand market stresses.

Operational risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss, ord#fmage to the Company’s reputation, resulting from
inadequate or failed processes, people and sysiefnsm external events. This definition includegal,
regulatory and compliance risks but excludes gjiatdsk. Operational risk relates to the followirigk
event categories as defined by Basel II: interrald; external fraud; employment practices and plade
safety; clients, products and business practicgsinbss disruption and system failure; damage ysipal
assets; and execution, delivery and process mar@agem

The Company may incur operational risk across thlestope of its business activities. The Company’s
business is highly dependent on its ability to pss; on a daily basis, a large number of transactgross
numerous and diverse global markets. In additiemy products or services may be introduced thatahp
or change business processes, thereby resultimgwn operational risks that may not have been fully
anticipated or identified. In general, the tranisss processed are increasingly complex. The Gomyp
relies on the ability of the Morgan Stanley Grouppdoyees, internal systems, and systems at tectyolo
centres operated by unaffiliated third partiesrmcpss a high volume of transactions.

The Company also faces the risk of operationalufailor termination of any of the clearing agents,
exchanges, clearing houses or financial intermidiatr uses to facilitate securities/ client trarigms. In
the event of a breakdown, unauthorised or impraperation of the Company’s or a third party’s syste
the Company could suffer financial loss, an impaininto its liquidity, a disruption of its businesse
regulatory sanctions and/ or reputational damalgeaddition, the interconnectivity of multiple fineial
institutions with central agencies, exchanges dadring houses, and the increased interconnectofity
these entities, increases the risk that an opetiask failure at one institution or entity maguse an
industry-wide operational failure that could maadlyi impact the Company’s ability to conduct busisie



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)

Operational risk (continued)

The Company relies on the secure processing, ®oeagl transmission of confidential and other
information in its computer systems and the systeftkird parties which the Company does busindfs w
or that facilitate its business activities, sucheagernal vendors and with third-party supplierkeLother
financial services firms, the Company and its thedty providers have been, and continue to bgesttn
unauthorised access, mishandling or misuse of imdtion, computer viruses or malware, cyber attacks
designed to obtain confidential information, degtdata disrupt or degrade service, sabotage systems
cause other system damage. If one or more of #hnemats occur, these events could have a secomigdt

on the Company’s systems and jeopardise the Conwpalignts’, business partners or counterparties’
personal, confidential, proprietary or other infation processed, stored in, and transmitted throtigtd
party providers’ computer systems. Furthermorehswents could cause interruptions or malfunctions
the Company'’s, and/ or the Company’s clients’, ¢erparties’ or third parties’ operations, which lzbu
result in reputational damage with our clients #relmarket, client dissatisfaction, additional dostepair
systems, add new protective technologies and/ msopeel, regulatory investigations, litigation ara/
regulatory fines, all of which adversely affect thesiness, financial condition and results of opens.

The Company is exposed to legal, regulatory andptiamce risks, which include the risk of legal or
regulatory sanctions, material financial loss; swh fines, penalties, judgements, damages and/ or
settlements or loss to reputation the Company mdfersas a result of a failure to comply with laws,
regulations, rules, self-regulatory organisatiotendards and codes of conduct applicable to busines
activities. Legal risk also includes contractua acommercial risks in the event that a counteyfmrt
performance obligations will be unenforceable. Tenpany is generally subject to extensive regulatio

the different jurisdictions in which it conducts thusiness. In the current environment of rapid@ossibly
transformational regulatory changes, the Compasg dlews regulatory changes as a component of legal
risk.

The Company has established procedures designéakster compliance with applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements. The Company, principallyotigh the Morgan Stanley Group’s Legal and
Compliance Division, also has established procedtivat are designed to require that the Morganl&tan
Group’s policies relating to business conduct,cstlaind practices are followed globally. In conrwttvith

its businesses, the Company continuously develapgeus procedures addressing issues such as regulat
capital requirements, sales and trading practicew, products, information barriers, potential citsl of
interest, structured transactions, use and safel@epd customer funds and securities, lending armdlit
granting, anti-money laundering, privacy and rekesping. In addition, the Company has established
procedures to mitigate the risk that a counterparperformance obligations will be unenforceable,
including consideration of counterparty legal auitiyoand capacity, adequacy of legal documentatibe,
permissibility of a transaction under applicable/ land whether applicable bankruptcy or insolveraayd
limit or alter contractual remedies. The legal aedulatory focus on the financial services industry
presents a continuing business challenge for thep2ay.



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)

Culture, Values and Conduct of Employees

All of the Morgan Stanley Group’s employees haveocaatability for risk management. The Morgan
Stanley Group strives to establish a culture oéatife risk management through its defined coreesl
governance framework, management oversight, traiaimd development programs, policies, procedures,
and defined roles and responsibilities within therlyain Stanley Group. The actions and conduct cif ea
employee are essential to risk management. TheahoBtanley Group’s Code of Conduct (the “Code”)
has been established to provide a framework amdiatds for employee conduct that further reinfotbes
Morgan Stanley Group’s commitment to integrity arigh ethical standards. Every new hire and every
employee annually must certify to their understagdif and adherence to the Code. The employeeasnnu
review process includes evaluation of adherenceh&o Code. The Global Incentive Compensation
Discretion Policy sets forth standards that spegiiff provide that managers must consider whether t
employee effectively managed and supervised thecdstrol practices of his/her employee reportsrdur
the performance year. The Morgan Stanley Groupskasral mutually reinforcing processes to identify
incidents of employee conduct that may have an anpm the employment status, current year
compensation or prior year compensation. The Mor§tanley Group’s clawback and cancellation
provisions permit recovery of deferred incentivenp@nsation where, for example, an employee’s act or
omission (included with respect to direct supemjs@sponsibilities) causes a restatement of theghio
Stanley Group’s consolidated financial results,stibutes a violation of the Morgan Stanley Grougiabal

risk management principles, policies and standadsauses a loss of revenue associated with sigosi
on which the employee was paid and the employestgrboutside of internal control policies.

Going concern

Business risks associated with the uncertain maaket economic conditions are being monitored and
managed by the Morgan Stanley Group and the CompRetaining sufficient liquidity and capital to
withstand these market pressures remains centréhetoMorgan Stanley Group’s and the Company’s
strategy. In particular, the Morgan Stanley Graugapital is deemed sufficient to exceed the minimu
capital ratio under the most negative stressedasicereviewed by the US Federal Reserve. The Morga
Stanley Group regularly performs stress testingnsure it has sufficient resources at its disptmsabsorb
losses associated with certain stressed scenarios.

Taking all of these factors into consideration, hieectors believe it is reasonable to assume tihat
Company will have access to adequate resourcesriiinae in operational existence for the foresemabl
future. Accordingly they continue to adopt the gpiconcern basis in preparing the annual report and
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The following Directors held office throughout thear and to the date of approval of this report:

R H L de Groot

H Herrmann

P J G de Reus

ZWu

TMF Management B.V



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has taken notice of Dutch legislatifiecdve as of 1 January 2013, as a consequence of
which the Company should take into account as naschossible a balanced composition of the Board of
Directors in terms of gender, when nominating quaapting Directors, to the effect that at leastg@dcent

of the positions should be held by women and at188 percent by men. Currently the compositiothef
Board of Directors deviates from the gender diwgrsbjectives. When appointing a Director, the Bbaf
Directors considers the gender diversity objectiassappropriate.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There have been no significant events since thertieg date.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company qualifies as an organisation of pubtierest pursuant to Dutch and European Union (JEU”
law. Morgan Stanley International Limited, a shaider in the Company as at 31 December 2014, has an
audit committee that functioned as the audit cotemitof the Company. On 26 March 2015, Morgan
Stanley International Limited disposed of its shafding in the Company; accordingly, the Company ca
no longer take the exemption available for groupd has established its own audit committee which
complies with the applicable corporate governamndest

AUDITOR

Deloitte Accountants B.V. have expressed theirimgihess to continue in office as auditor of the @any
and a resolution to re-appoint them will be progoaethe forthcoming annual general meeting.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

28 April 2015
R H L de Groot H Herrmann P J G de Reus
ZWu TMF Management B.V.


SASGEL01
Typewritten text
28 April 2015


MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors, the names of whom are set out betowfirm to the best of their knowledge:

- the financial statements have been prepared inrédacoe with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the Internatichadounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and as
endorsed by the EU and give a true and fair viethefassets, liabilities, financial position andfjir
or loss of the Company; and

- the management report represented by the Direateps'rt includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the positicheofCompany together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Compfaces.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

28 April 2015
R H L de Groot H Herrmann P J G de Reus
ZWu TMF Management B.V.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2014

Note 2014 2013
€'000 €'000

Net gains on financial instruments classified dd he
for trading 185,570 509,271

Net losses on financial instruments designatediat f
value through profit or loss (185,570 (509,271)
Interest income 4 24,932 25,554
Interest expense 4 (24,832 (25,459)
Other income 5 6,658 6,094
Other expense 6 (100) (95)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6,658 6,094
Income tax expense 7 (1,665) (1,518)

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR

THE YEAR 4,993 4,576

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral gdheofinancial statements.



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2013

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2013

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral gdheofinancial statements.

Share Retained Total
capital earnings equity
€'000 €'000 €'000
15,01¢ 5,483 20,501
- 4,576 4,576
15,01¢ 10,05¢ 25,077
- 4,993 4,993
15,01¢ 15,05z 30,070




MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

Registered number: 34161590

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2014
(Including Proposed Appropriation of Results)

ASSETS

Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Other receivables

Financial assets classified as held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value througfitfor loss
Current tax assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates
Trade payables
Other payables

Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh profit or loss
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital

Retained earnings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Note

19

10

19

10

11

2014 2013
€000 €000
510 1,585
24,586 2,947
1,486,292 1,195,027
1,511,388 1,199,559
527,856 979,451
6,042,485 5,990,950
73 650
8,081,802 8,170,610
1,195,354 1,170,579
296,607 54,607
10,024 21
1,501,985 1,225,207
503,487 283,324
6,046,260 6,637,002
8,051,732 8,145,533
15,018 15,018
15,052 10,059
30,070 25,077
30,070 25,077
8,081,802 8,170,610

These financial statements were approved by thedBared authorised for issue on

Signed on behalf of the Board

28 April 2015
R H L de Groot H Herrmann
ZWu TMF Management B.V.

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral gdheofinancial statements.

P J G de Reus
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
€'000 €'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 4,993 4,576
Adjustments for:
Interest income (24,932 (25,554)
Interest expense 24,832 25,459
Income tax expense 1,665 1,518
Operating cash flows before changes in operatisgtagnd
liabilities 6,558 5,999
Changes in operating assets
Increase in loans and receivables, excluding
cash and short-term deposits (287,972 (4,850)
Decrease/ (increase) in financial assets classis held for
trading 451,59t (418,053)
Increase in financial assets designated avédire
through profit or loss (51,535 (1,201,488)
112,08¢ (1,624,391)
Changes in operating liabilities
Increase in financial liabilities at amortisedsto
excluding bank loans and overdrafts 251,994 32,070
Increase in financial liabilities classified asdhfor
trading 220,163 17,974
(Decrease)/ increase in financial liabilitiesigaeated at fair valu
through profit or loss (590,742 1,571,410
(118,585 1,621,454
Interest paid (48) (75)
Income taxes paid (1,088) (2,657)
(1,136) (2,732)
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/ FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (1,075) 330
NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (1,075) 330
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 1,585 1,255
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 510 1,585

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral gdhecfinancial statements.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in ThéhBidands, at the following address:
Luna Arena, Herikerbergweg 238, 1101 CM, Amsterdahg Netherlands.

The Company is engaged in the issuance of StruttNies and the hedging of the obligations arising
pursuant to such issuances with prepaid equityré@sucontracts, loans designated at fair valueugh
profit or loss and derivatives entered into withrglan Stanley Group undertakings.

The issued Structured Notes expose the Comparhetdgk of changes in market prices of the undeglyi
securities, interest rate risk and, where denormathat currencies other than Euros, the risk of gharn
rates of exchange between the Euro and the ottexare currencies. The Company uses the contriaats t

it purchases from other Morgan Stanley Group uladérgs to hedge the market price, interest rate and
foreign currency risks associated with the issuaridbe Structured Notes. The changes in fair vafuthe
Structured Notes issuances are fully hedged bghbheges in fair value of these contracts.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

The Company has prepared its annual financialretatés in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB a
adopted by the EU, Interpretations issued by tiRSIterpretations Committee and Dutch law.

New standards and interpretations adopted during tle year

The following amendment to a standard relevanhéoG@ompany’s operations was adopted during the year
This amendment did not have a material impact erCthmpany’s financial statements.

An amendment to IAS 3ZFinancial instruments: Presentation — offsettifigancial instruments(“IAS
32") was issued by the IASB in December 2011, &raspective application in annual periods begignin
on or after 1 January 2014. The amendment was seddy the EU in December 2012.

There were no other standards or interpretatiolevaat to the Company’s operations which were aslbpt
during the year.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financialtestéents, the following standards and amendments to
standards relevant to the Company’s operations vested by the IASB but not yet mandatory. Except

where otherwise stated, the Company does not expattthe adoption of the following standards and

amendments to standards will have a material impa¢he Company’s financial statements.

An amendment to IAS Disclosure initiative’ was issued by the IASB in December 2014, for apgibhn
in annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januai62

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’(“IFRS 9”) was issued by the IASB in November 20@®nended in
November 2013, and revised and reissued by the likSBIly 2014. Retrospective application is regdir
by IFRS 9, which is effective for annual periodgjin@ing on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption
either in full or relating to own credit in isolati, is permitted. Although there are expected ¢o b
significant changes to the presentation of findriastruments by the Company, there is not expetdduk

a significant impact on net assets.

IFRS 15'Revenue from Contracts with Customensis issued by the IASB in May 2014 for retrospextiv
application in annual periods beginning on or aftdanuary 2017.

As part of the December 2013 Improvements to IFRBs,IASB made amendments to the following
standards that are relevant to the Company's opesalFRS 13'Fair value measurementand IAS 24
‘Related party disclosuregfor application in accounting periods beginningamafter 1 July 2014). The
improvements were endorsed by the EU in Decemb&4.20

12



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
New standards and interpretations not yet adoptedcpntinued)

As part of the September 2014 Improvements to IFRISs IASB made amendments to the following
standards that are relevant to the Company’'s dpegtIFRS 7,'Financial instruments: Disclosures’
(“IFRS 77) and IAS 34Interim financial reporting’(for application in accounting periods beginningan
after 1 January 2016).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Company are prepareler the historical cost basis except for certai
financial instruments that have been measuredratdhue as explained in the accounting policiel®we

Use of estimates and sources of uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statememquires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions regarding the valuafiaentain financial instruments, impairment of dsse
and other matters that affect the financial statémand related disclosures. The Company belidashe
estimates utilised in preparing the financial staats are reasonable, relevant and reliable. Acasllts
could differ from these estimates.

For further details on the judgements used in dateéng fair value of certain assets and liabilitisse note
16.

The going concern assumption

The Company’s business activities, together wita factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position, are reflected in the Bess Review section of the Directors' report orepah

to 5. In addition, the notes to the financial staets include the Company’'s objectives, policied an
processes for managing its capital; its financiak rmanagement objectives; details of its financial
instruments; and its exposures to credit risk &naddity risk.

As set out in the Directors' report, retaining miit liquidity and capital to withstand marketepsures
remains central to the Morgan Stanley Group’s &eddompany’s strategy.

Taking all of these factors into consideration, thieectors believe it is reasonable to assume tinat
Company will have access to adequate resourcesriiinae in operational existence for the foresemabl
future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the rgpiconcern basis in preparing the annual report and
financial statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements are mnegsand presented in Euros, the currency of timeapy
economic environment in which the Company operates.

All currency amounts in the financial statementd Birectors’ report are rounded to the nearestshod
Euros.

b. Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities denominateaunrencies other than Euros are translated into£at

the rates ruling at the reporting date. Transastioncurrencies other than Euros are recordedeatates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Adhslation differences are taken through the staieme
comprehensive income. Exchange differences recegriis the statement of comprehensive income are
presented in ‘Other income’ or ‘Other expense’ egtavhere noted in 3(c) below.

13



MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
c. Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets int ftillowing categories on initial recognition: fimgal
assets classified as held for trading, financiabtsdesignated at fair value through profit os lasd loans
and receivables.

The Company classifies its financial liabilitiesarthe following categories on initial recognitidimancial
liabilities classified as held for trading; finaatiiabilities designated at fair value through fiiror loss
and financial liabilities at amortised cost.

More information regarding these classificationsiduded below:
i) Financial instruments classified as held for traing

Financial instruments classified as held for trgdimcluding all derivatives, are initially recoien
trade date at fair value (see note 3(d) below)l s@ibsequent changes in fair value, foreign excaang
differences, interest and dividends are reflectethé statement of comprehensive income in ‘Netgai
on financial instruments classified as held foding’. Transaction costs are excluded from the initial fai
value measurement of the financial instrument. Auwgh costs are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in ‘Other expense’.

i) Financial instruments designated at fair valuethrough profit or loss

The Company has designated certain financial imstnis at fair value through profit or loss when the
financial instruments are managed, evaluated guatted internally on a fair value basis.

From the date the transaction in a financial imegnt designated at fair value through profit oslas
entered into (trade date) until settlement date,Gbmpany recognises any unrealised fair valueggsan
in the contract as financial instruments designatefair value through profit or loss. On settleindate,
the fair value of consideration given or receiveddcognised as a financial instrument designatéaira
value through profit or loss (see note 3(d) belod) subsequent changes in fair value, foreign exde
differences, interest and dividends are reflectethe statement of comprehensive income in ‘Netdes
on financial instruments designated at fair vahreuigh profit or loss’.

Transaction costs are excluded from the initiad f@lue measurement of the financial instrumenty An
such costs are recognised in the statement of @rapsive income in ‘Other expense’.

iii) Loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets classified as loans and receiwavkerecognised when the Company becomes a party t
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Tlag initially measured at fair value (see note 3(d)
below) and subsequently measured at amortisedesssallowance for impairment. Interest is recegdi

in the statement of comprehensive income in ‘Irgeicome’, using the effective interest rate mdthe
described below. Transaction costs that are dyrettributable to the acquisition of the financédset
are added to or deducted from the fair value aialrmiecognition. Any impairment losses and revisrsé
impairment losses on financial assets classifiddass and receivables are recognised in the staieof
comprehensive income in ‘Other expense’.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are recsgdi when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. They iaiBally measured at fair value (see note 3(d)obgl

and subsequently measured at amortised cost. estiter recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in ‘Interest expense’ using the effectivieiast rate method as described below. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the isstithe financial liability are added to or deducfedm the

fair value on initial recognition.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
c. Financial instruments (continued)
iii) Loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost (continued)

The CPECs issued by the Company are classifiethasdial liabilities at amortised cost in accordanc
with the substance of the contractual arrangemeditlAS 32. The yield on the CPECs is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income in ‘Inteeggense’ using the effective interest rate mettod a
described below.

The effective interest rate method is a methodaddidating the amortised cost of a financial insteunt
(or a group of financial instruments) and of allig the interest income or interest expense oler t
expected life of the financial instrument. Theeeffve interest rate is the rate that exactly dist® the
estimated future cash payments and receipts thrthgtexpected life of the financial instrument (or,
where appropriate a shorter period) to the carrgngpunt of the financial instrument. The effective
interest rate is established on initial recognitminthe financial instrument. The calculation dket
effective interest rate includes all fees and cossions paid or received, transaction costs, arabdigs

or premiums that are an integral part of the efffedinterest rate. Transaction costs are increat@aists
that are directly attributable to the acquisitimsue or disposal of a financial instrument.

d. Fair value
Fair value measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would lxeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliiglfi.e. the
“exit price”) in an orderly transaction between ketrparticipants at the measurement date.

Where the Company manages a group of financialtsass®l financial liabilities on the basis of itst ne
exposure to either market or credit risk, the Comypmeasures the fair value of that group of finahci
instruments consistently with how market particiisamould price the net risk exposure at the measeng
date.

In determining fair value, the Company uses variealsiation approaches and establishes a hieraarhy f
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximteesuse of relevant observable inputs and minintises
use of unobservable inputs by requiring that thestmobservable inputs be used when available.
Observable inputs are inputs that market parti¢ggparould use in pricing the asset or liability dieyed
based on market data obtained from sources indepénd the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs
that reflect the Company’s assumptions about tlsiraptions other market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability, that are developbdsed on the best information available in the
circumstances.

The hierarchy is broken down into three levels Hamethe observability of inputs as follows:
* Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an actiaeket for identical assets or liabilities

Valuations based on quoted prices in active markatddentical assets or liabilities that the
Morgan Stanley Group has the ability to accessustadn adjustments and block discounts are not
applied to Level 1 instruments. Since valuatiors lassed on quoted prices that are readily and
regularly available in an active market, valuatminthese products does not entail a significant
degree of judgement.

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques using observabletisp

Valuations based on one or more quoted prices irket& that are not active or for which all
significant inputs are observable, either direotiyndirectly.

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques with significant bservable inputs

Valuations based on inputs that are unobservabteé sagnificant to the overall fair value
measurement.
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MORGAN STANLEY B.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value (continued)

The availability of observable inputs can vary frpneduct to product and is affected by a wide \graf
factors, including, for example, the type of progwehether the product is new and not yet estadtish

the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and ottlesiracteristics particular to the product. To éleent
that valuation is based on models or inputs thatlass observable or unobservable in the market, th
determination of fair value requires more judgemémcordingly, the degree of judgement exercised by
the Company in determining fair value is greatestifistruments categorised in Level 3 of the failue
hierarchy.

The Company considers prices and inputs that anemuas of the measurement date, including during
periods of market dislocation. In periods of mardislocation, the observability of prices and itpmay

be reduced for many instruments. This conditiond@ause an instrument to be reclassified from Léve
to Level 2 or Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair valberarchy. In addition, a downturn in market coiudis
could lead to declines in the valuation of manyrimaents.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure &uevmay fall into different levels of the fair val
hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purpdbeslevel in the fair value hierarchy within whithe fair
value measurement falls in its entirety is deteadibased on the lowest level input that is sigaifido the
fair value measurement in its entirety.

Valuation techniques

Many cash instruments and over-the-counter (“OT@&yivative contracts have bid and ask priceschat
be observed in the marketplace. Bid prices refteethighest price that a party is willing to pay &m asset.
Ask prices represent the lowest price that a partyilling to accept for an asset. For financiatmments
whose inputs are based on bid-ask prices, the Coyng@es not require that the fair value estimateags
be a predetermined point in the bid-ask range. Cbmpany’s policy is to allow for mid-market pricing
and to adjust to the point within the bid-ask ratiggg meets the Company’s best estimate of faurezaror
offsetting positions in the same financial instrumpehe same price within the bid-ask spread isl use
measure both the long and short positions.

Fair value for many cash instruments and OTC dgveacontracts is derived using pricing models.
Pricing models take into account the contract te(msluding maturity), as well as multiple inputs
including, where applicable, commodity prices, &gurices, interest rate yield curves, credit csrve
correlation, creditworthiness of the counterpadngditworthiness of the Company, option volatilégpd
currency rates. Where appropriate, valuation adijests are made to account for various factors sgch
liquidity risk (bid-ask adjustments), credit quglimodel uncertainty and concentration risk.

Adjustments for liquidity risk adjust model-derivexid-market levels of Level 2 and Level 3 financial
instruments for the bid-mid or mid-ask spread regplito properly reflect the exit price of a risksfimn.
Bid-mid and mid-ask spreads are marked to levelended in trade activity, broker quotes or other
external third-party data. Where these spreadsuaobservable for the particular position in quasti
spreads are derived from observable levels of aimpibsitions.

Credit valuation adjustments are applied to botlrtsterm instruments and long-term borrowings
(primarily structured notes) which are designateédfair value through profit or loss and to OTC
derivatives. The impact of changes in own cregditads based upon observations of secondary bond
market spreads is considered when measuring thedhie for short-term and long-term borrowingsr F
OTC derivatives, the impact of changes in both @menpany’s and the counterparty’s credit standing is
considered when measuring fair value. In detemgirihe expected exposure the Company simulates the
distribution of the future exposure to a countetyahen applies market-based default probabilitiethe
future exposure, leveraging external third-partgddr default swap (“CDS”) spread data. Where CDS
spread data are unavailable for a specific couatgrpbond market spreads, CDS spread data bastu:on
counterparty’s credit rating or CDS spread data tékerence a comparable counterparty may be edilis
The Company also considers collateral held andliegaforceable master netting agreements thapatii

the Company’s exposure to each counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value (continued)

Adjustments for model uncertainty are taken for ifimss whose underlying models are reliant on
significant inputs that are neither directly nodinectly observable, hence requiring reliance datdshed
theoretical concepts in their derivation. Thesgustthents are derived by making assessments of the
possible degree of variability using statisticapagaches and market-based information where pessibl
The Company generally subjects all valuations andets to a review process initially and on a pddod
basis thereafter.

The Company may apply a concentration adjustmenettain of its OTC derivatives portfolios to refle
the additional cost of closing out a particuladyde risk exposure. Where possible, these adjussnagza
based on observable market information but in mastances significant judgement is required tonesste
the costs of closing out concentrated risk expasdee to the lack of liquidity in the marketplace.

Fair value is a market-based measure consideradtfie perspective of a market participant rathantan
entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when ntadks&sumptions are not readily available, the
Company’s own assumptions are set to reflect thiosethe Company believes market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability at the meagugnt date.

Valuation process

The Valuation Review Group (“VRG”) within the Fingial Control Group (“FCG”) is responsible for the
Company’s fair value valuation policies, procesard procedures. VRG is independent of the business
units and reports to the Chief Financial Officertb& Morgan Stanley Group (“CFQ”), who has final
authority over the valuation of the Company’s figiah instruments. VRG implements valuation control
processes to validate the fair value of the Comisdiimancial instruments measured at fair valugudng
those derived from pricing models. These controktpsses are designed to assure that the valuedoused
financial reporting are based on observable inptgsrever possible. In the event that observabletgare

not available, the control processes are designeddure that the valuation approach utilised p@wiate

and consistently applied and that the assumptitsnseasonable.

The Company’s control processes apply to all fir@nastruments, unless otherwise noted. Theserabnt
processes include:

Model ReviewVRG, in conjunction with the Market Risk Departmemtd, where appropriate, the
Credit Risk Management Department, both of whighoreto the Chief Risk Officer of the Morgan
Stanley Group (“CRQ”), independently review valoati models’ theoretical soundness, the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology atibresion techniques developed by the business
units using observable inputs. Where inputs areoheervable, VRG reviews the appropriateness of
the proposed valuation methodology to ensure ébissistent with how a market participant would
arrive at the unobservable input. The valuationhom@blogies utilised in the absence of observable
inputs may include extrapolation techniques andugeof comparable observable inputs. As part of
the review, VRG develops a methodology to indepetideverify the fair value generated by the
business unit's valuation models. Before tradesex@cuted using new valuation models, those
models are required to be independently reviewdt.oAthe Company’s valuation models are
subject to an independent annual VRG review.

Independent Price Verificatiorl.he business units are responsible for determittiegfair value of
financial instruments using approved valuation n@@ad valuation methodologies. Generally on a
monthly basis,VRG independently validates the fair values of fiicial instruments determined
using valuation models by determining the appraerniess of the inputs used by the business units
and by testing compliance with the documented vmlnamethodologies approved in the model
review process described above.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
d. Fair value (continued)

VRG uses recently executed transactions, otherradiisie market data such as exchange data,
broker/ dealer quotes, third-party pricing vendargl aggregation services for validating the fair
values of financial instruments generated usingatédn models. VRG assesses the external sources
and their valuation methodologies to determine hié texternal providers meet the minimum
standards expected of a third-party pricing souRscing data provided by approved external
sources are evaluated using a number of approattreexample, by corroborating the external
sources’ prices to executed trades, by analysiegniethodology and assumptions used by the
external source to generate a price and/ or byuatia how active the third-party pricing source (o
originating sources used by the third-party pricsogirce) is in the market. Based on this analysis,
VRG generates a ranking of the observable markattdeensure that the highest-ranked market data
source is used to validate the business unit'sviire of financial instruments.

For financial instruments where the fair value &sdd on unobservable inputs, VRG reviews the
business unit’s valuation techniques to ensure ethase consistent with market participant
assumptions.

The results of this independent price verificatgom any adjustments made by VRG to the fair value
generated by the business units are presented nagement of the Morgan Stanley Group’s three
business segments (i.e. Institutional Securitieeakti Management and Investment Management),
the CFO and the CRO on a regular basis.

Review of Transactions where the valuation is basedinobservable input3/RG reviews the
models and valuation methodology used to priceel material Level 3 transactions and both the
FCG and Market Risk Department management mustogppthe fair value of the trade that is
initially recognised.

Gains and losses on inception

In the normal course of business, the fair valueadfnancial instrument on initial recognition iset
transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the cdesation given or received). In certain circumsemc
however, the fair value will be based on other okmale current market transactions in the same
instrument, without modification or repackaging,aor a valuation technique whose variables includg o
data from observable markets. When such evidendtsexthe Company recognises a gain or loss on
inception of the transaction.

When the use of unobservable market data has dfiségn impact on determining fair value at the
inception of the transaction, the entire initiairgar loss indicated by the valuation techniqueatishe
transaction date is not recognised immediatelfénstatement of comprehensive income and is resedni
instead when the market data becomes observable.

e. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilitie

The Company derecognises a financial asset onlynwie contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financiabtand substantially all the risk and rewardsvafiership
of the asset.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities wites Company’s obligations are discharged, cartelle
or they expire.

f. Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, an assessment is madevelsetiher there is any objective evidence of impainn
in the value of a financial asset classified amn$oand receivables. Impairment losses are recafifisen
event has occurred which will have an adverse imnpac¢he expected future cash flows of an assetland
expected impact can be reliably estimated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINU ED)
f. Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on loans and receivables areurezhss the difference between the carrying amofunt
the loans and receivables and the present valestohated cash flows discounted at the asset’snatig
effective interest rate. Such impairment lossesracegnised in the statement of comprehensive iscom
within ‘Other expense’ and are recognised agaihst darrying amount of the impaired asset on the
statement of financial position. Interest on thepained asset continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the original effectiveriest rate of the asset.

If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estidhatgairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, gteviously recognised impairment loss is reversed a
detailed by financial asset in note 3(c)(iii). Argversal is limited to the extent that the valughef asset
may not exceed the original amortised cost of Hsetahad no impairment occurred.

g. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flowsh @nd cash equivalents comprise cash and demand
deposits with banks, along with highly liquid int@ents, with original maturities of three monthdess,
that are readily convertible to known amounts afhcand subject to insignificant risk of change atue.

h. Income tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the taxntiyrmayable.

The tax currently payable is calculated based galie profit for the year. Taxable profit may diffeom
profit before income tax as reported in the statgroé comprehensive income because it excludessitaim
income or expense that are taxable or deductibtghiar years and it further excludes items thatneneer
taxable or deductible. The Company'’s liability forrrent tax is calculated using tax rates that Hzaen
enacted or substantively enacted by the reportatg. Current tax is charged or credited in theestant of
comprehensive income.

Current tax assets are offset against currentdbiities when there is a legally enforceable titghset off
current tax assets against current tax liabiliied the Company intends to settle its current tmets and
current tax liabilities on a net basis or to reatise asset and settle the liability simultaneausly

i. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liailities

Where there is a currently legally enforceable trighset off the recognised amounts and an intarttio
either settle on a net basis or to realise thetamse the liability simultaneously, financial asseind
financial liabilities are offset and the net amoimpresented on the statement of financial pasitim the
absence of such conditions, financial assets arashfial liabilities are presented on a gross basis.

4. INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ represkntal interest income and total interest expenge fo
financial assets and financial liabilities that ace carried at fair value.

No other gains or losses have been recognisedjece of loans and receivables other than as disdlas
‘Interest income’ within the statement of compresiee income.

No other gains or losses have been recognisedpecet of financial liabilities at amortised coshet than
as disclosed as ‘Interest expense’ within the staté of comprehensive income.

5. OTHER INCOME

2014 2013
€'000 €'000
Management charges to other Morgan Stanley Grodprtakings 6,658 6,094
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6. OTHER EXPENSE

2014 2013
€'000 €'000
Auditors remuneration:
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its etesdor the
audit of the Company’s financial statements 100 95

Of the auditors’ remuneration, €36,000 (2013: €88)0was paid to Deloitte Accountants B.V. for audit
services.

The Company employed no staff during the year (20b8e).

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2014 2013
€'000 €'000
Current tax expense
Current year 1,665 1,524
Adjustments in respect of prior years - (6)
Income tax expense 1,665 1,518

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The current year income tax expense is the sanf@ds: lower than) that resulting from applying the
average standard rate of corporation tax in Théét&nds for the year of 25.0% (2013: 25.0%). Tlénm
differences are explained below:

2014 2013
€'000 €'000
Profit before income tax 6,658 6,094
Income tax using the average standard rate of catipa tax
in The Netherlands of 25.0% (2013: 25.0%) 1,665 1,524
Impact on tax of:
Tax over provided in prior years - (6)
Total income tax expense in the statement of comgrensive
income 1,665 1,518
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8. CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED EQUITY CERTIFICATES

€'000
At 1 January 2013 1,145,195
Yield payable 25,384
At 31 December 2013 1,170,579
Yield payable 24,775
At 31 December 2014 1,195,354

On 30 March 2012, the Company issued 11,252 ,818RECs of €100 each, classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. The CPECs were idstieeone of the Company's shareholders, Archimedes
Investments Codperatieve U.A. (a Morgan Stanleyu@nondertaking), in exchange for cash consideration
of €1,125,281,000.

The holder of the CPECs is entitled to receive mmual yield on a date agreed by the Company and the
holder. The yield for each CPEC is calculatedresiine deriving from the Company's activities ldss t
necessary amounts to cover the costs of the Contlisigled by the number of CPECs then in issue. Othe
income relating to management charges received @ttver Morgan Stanley Group undertakings and gains
or losses from financial instruments classifiechakl for trading or designated at fair value thiopgofit

or loss are excluded from the calculation.

The CPECs carry no voting rights. The Company dred holder have the right to convert each issued
CPEC into one ordinary share with a nominal valt€1®0.

The maturity date of the CPECs is 150 years from dhte of issuance, however, the CPECs may be
redeemed earlier at the option of the Company digoidation of the Company.

The CPECs rank ahead of the ordinary shares iavéet of liquidation.

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CLASSIFI  ED AS HELD FOR
TRADING

Financial assets and financial liabilities clagsifas held for trading are summarised as follows:

2014 2013
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Derivatives 527,856 503,487 979,451 283,324
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10. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNAT ED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial instruments designated at fair value ughoprofit or loss consist primarily of the followg
financial liabilities and financial assets:

Issued Structured NoteFhese relate to financial liabilities which arigerh selling structured products
generally in the form of notes, certificates andramts. These instruments contain an embeddedatiesv
which significantly modifies the cash flows of tilesuance. The return on the instrument is linkedrto
underlying that is not clearly and closely relatedhe debt host including, but not limited to eginked
notes. The Structured Notes are designated avd#ire through profit or loss as the risks to whibk
Company is a contractual party are risk managea ¢air value basis as part of the Company’s trading
portfolio and the risk is reported to key managenpemsonnel on this basis.

Prepaid equity securities contractEhese contracts involve derivatives for which @itial payment is paid

at inception. The contracts, along with the loamsighated at fair value through profit or loss dine
derivative contracts classified as held for tradieag part of the hedging strategy for the oblaadiarising
pursuant to the issuance of the Structured Notks.prepaid equity securities contracts are desgnat
fair value through profit or loss as the risks thiah the Company is a contractual party are managea
fair value basis as part of the Company’s tradiongfplio and the risk is reported to key management
personnel on this basis.

Loans: These are loans to other Morgan Stanley Group teddegs that, along with the prepaid equity
securities contracts and the derivatives contraletssified as held for trading, are part of the died
strategy for the obligations arising pursuant te thsuance of the Structured Notes. These loans are
designated at fair value through profit or losgtesrisks to which the Company is a contractuatypare
managed on a fair value basis as part of the Coyparading portfolio and the risk is reported teyk
management personnel on this basis.

2014 2013
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Issued Structured Notes - 6,046,260 - 6,637,002
Prepaid equity securities contracts 253,314 - 1,805,691 -
Loans 5,789,171 - 4,185,259 -

6,042,485 6,046,260 5,990,950 6,637,002

The change in fair value of issued Structured Nogesgnised through the statement of comprehensive
income attributable to own credit risk is a gair€@{416,000 (2013: loss of €53,205,000) and curiveligt

is a gain of €90,350,000 (2013: cumulative gai&8,934,000). This change is determined as the amou
of change in fair value that is not attributablebanges in market conditions that give rise toketarisk.

The change in fair value of prepaid equity seasitontracts and loans recognised through thenstate
of comprehensive income attributable to own cra@k is a loss of €14,296,000 (2013: gain of
€66,011,000) and cumulatively is a loss of €89,2@6,(2013: cumulative loss of €74,929,000).

The change in fair value of financial instrumengsignated at fair value through profit or lossibittable

to own credit risk for the year is offset by a metin of €12,880,000 (2013: loss of €12,806,000) and
cumulatively is a net loss of €1,125,000 (2013: clative loss of €14,005,000), in changes in the fai
value of financial instruments classified as heldtfading attributable to own credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial liabilities desaged at fair value was €300,763,000 lower than the
contractual amount due at maturity (2013: €258 @80 higher).
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10. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNAT ED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The following tables present the carrying valuetlted Company’s financial liabilities designated air f
value through the profit or loss account, clasdiecording to underlying security type, includis@gle
name equities, equity indices and equity portfolio.

Single

name Equity Equity
31 December 2014 equities indices portfolio Other Total

€'000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000
Certificates and warrants 1,612,100 34,796 506,710 - 2,153,606
Notes 263,814 2,407,886 751,519 469,435 3,892,654

Total financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss 1,875,914 2,442,682 1,258,229 469,435 6,046,260

Single

name Equity Equity
31 December 2013 equities indices portfolio Other Total

€000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000
Certificates and warrants 1,949,054 125,508 461,638 - 2,536,200
Notes 401,068 2,339,586 959,780 400,368 4,100,802

Total financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss 2,350,122 2,465,094 1,421,418 400,368 6,637,002

The majority of the Company’s financial liabilitiefesignated at fair value through the profit orslos
provide exposure to an underlying single name ggait equity index or portfolio of equities. The=paid
equity securities contracts, derivative contra¢éssified as held for trading and loans that thenGany
enters into in order to hedge the Structured Natesvalued as detailed in note 3(d) and note 16z,
have similar valuation inputs to the liabilitieethhedge.

11. EQUITY

Ordinary share capital

Ordinary
shares of
€100 each
€'000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 31 Deaepfliel 15,018

On 9 December 2013 the Articles of Associationtef Company were amended whereby the concept of
authorised share capital was abolished and whettebdyoting rights attached to the Company’s shares
were amended. Following the amendment of the Agicif Association each share confers the rightisb ¢
one vote, provided that subject to mandatory ldiwesolutions of the General Meeting shall be addp

by unanimous vote in a meeting in which the ergfrare capital is present or represented.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled toivecgividends as declared from time to time.
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11. EQUITY (CONTINUED)
Reserves

The Company uses the contracts that it purchases dther Morgan Stanley Group undertakings to hedge
the market price, interest rate, foreign currenag ather market risks associated with the issuafdbe
Structured Notes, consistent with the Company’k nsmnagement strategy. Both the contracts and the
Structured Note issuances are valued at fair viloeugh profit or loss. As such the Company is not
exposed to any market risk on these financial imsémts. The changes in fair value of the Structivet®
issuances are fully hedged by the changes in flirevof these contracts. Therefore, a legal retialua
reserve under Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil EGAW?2, article 390(1)) is not necessary.

12. EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets abititiss analysed according to when they are exgrbtd
be recovered, realised or settled.

At 31 December 2014 Less than
or equal to More than
twelve twelve
months months Total
€'000 €'000 €'000
ASSETS
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 510 - 510
Trade receivables 24,586 - 24,586
Other receivables 363,001 1,123,291 1,486,292

388,097 1,123,291 1,511,388

Financial assets classified as held for trading 171,550 356,306 527,856
Financial assets designated at fair value througfitfor loss 1,733,307 4,309,178 6,042,485
Current tax assets 73 - 73

2,293,027 5,788,775 8,081,802

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates 70,073 1,125,281 1,195,354
Trade payables 296,607 - 296,607
Other payables 10,024 - 10,024
376,704 1,125,281 1,501,985
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin 165,480 338,007 503,487

Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh profit or loss 1,720,773 4,325,487 6,046,260
2,262,957 5,788,775 8,051,732
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12. EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTIN UED)

At 31 December 2013 Less than
or equal to More than
twelve twelve
months months Total
€'000 €'000 €'000
ASSETS
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 1,585 - 1,585
Trade receivables 2,947 - 2,947
Other receivables 26,212 1,168,815 1,195,027

30,744 1,168,815 1,199,559

Financial assets classified as held for trading 403,975 575,476 979,451
Financial assets designated at fair value througfitfor loss 1,722,487 4,268,463 5,990,950
Current tax assets 650 - 650

2,157,856 6,012,754 8,170,610

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates - 1,170,579 1,170,579
Trade payables 54,607 - 54,607
Other payables 21 - 21
54,628 1,170,579 1,225,207
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin 86,332 196,992 283,324

Financial liabilities designated at fair value thg profit or loss 1,991,819 4,645,183 6,637,002
2,132,779 6,012,754 8,145,533

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect ofGbepany’s business and geographical segments. The
business segments and geographical segments a@d basthe Company’s management and internal
reporting structure.

Business segments

Morgan Stanley structures its business segmentsapty based upon the nature of the financial pobsiu
and services provided to customers and Morgan Staninternal management structure. The Company’s
own business segments are consistent with thoseafan Stanley.

The Company has one reportable business segmestitutional Securities, which provides financial
services to financial institutions. Its businesdudes the issuance of financial instruments aachéitging
of the obligations arising pursuant to such isseanc

Geographical segments

The Company operates in three geographic regiolisted below:
e Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA")

* Americas

« Asia
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
Geographical segments (continued)

The following table presents selected statementarfiprehensive income and statement of financial
position information of the Company’s operations d¢igographic area. The external revenues (net of
interest expense) and total assets disclosed infdl@wing table reflect the regional view of the
Company’s operations, on a managed basis. The f@sattributing external revenues (net of interes
expense) and total assets is determined by trattisk location.

EMEA Americas Asia Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000

External
revenues
net of interest 5,778 5,007 564 605 416 577 6,758 6,189

Profit before
income tax 5,692 4,930 556 596 410 568 6,658 6,094

Total assets 5,855,67: 5,585,10¢ 1,841,92¢ 1,913,72¢ 384,20z 671,77¢ 8,081,80: 8,170,610

Of the Company’s external revenue, 100% (2013: J0@f%ises from transactions with other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings. Further details ofhstransactions are disclosed in the related party
disclosures note 19.

14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management procedures

Risk is an inherent part of the Company’s busireswity. The Company seeks to identify, assessjitan
and manage each of the various types of risk iraiw its business activities in accordance witfingel
policies and procedures. The Company has develipedvn risk management policy framework, which
is consistent with and leverages the risk managépaities and procedures of the Morgan Stanleyu@ro
and which include escalation to the Company’s BadrBirectors and to appropriate senior management
personnel.

Significant risks faced by the Company resultirapfrits trading activities are set out below.
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising wharborrower, counterparty or issuer does not niset i
financial obligations to the Company.

The credit risk management policies and procedoféise Company establish the framework for ensuring
transparency of material credit risks, ensuring plience with established limits and escalating risk
concentrations to appropriate senior management.

The Company enters into the majority of its finah@isset transactions with other Morgan Stanleyu@ro
undertakings, and both the Company and the othegdtoStanley Group undertakings are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the same ultimate parent entityyddo Stanley. As a result of the implicit suppibidt
would be provided by Morgan Stanley, the Compangoissidered exposed to the credit risk of Morgan
Stanley, except where the Company transacts witrdflorgan Stanley Group undertakings that have a
higher credit rating to that of Morgan Stanley.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

Due to regulations in the US, which impact certzdninterparties to the Company’s derivatives classif
as held for trading, the Company entered into ltmhl arrangement with another Morgan Stanleyu@ro
undertaking. Collateral held is managed in accardamith the Morgan Stanley Group’s guidelines drel t
relevant underlying agreements.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Companthe reporting date is the carrying amount of the
financial assets held in the statement of finangasition. Where the Company enters into credit
enhancements to manage the credit exposure on fineseial instruments, including receiving cash as
collateral and master netting agreements, the ¢inheffect of the credit enhancements is alsolossd
below. The net credit exposure represents the tceeqliosure remaining after the effect of the credit
enhancements

The Company does not have any significant expaatiseng from items not recognised on the stateroént
financial position.

Exposure to credit risk by class:

Class 2014 2013
Gross Net Gross Net
credit credit credit credit
exposure Credit exposure exposure Credit exposure
@ enhancements @ @ enhancement: @
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000

Loans and receivables:

Cash and short-term deposits 510 - 510 1,585 - 1,585
Trade receivables 24,586 - 24,586 2,947 - 2,947
Other receivables 1,486,292 - 1,486,292 1,195,027 - 1,195,027

Financial assets classified as
held for trading:

Derivatives 527,856 (527,695, 161 979,451 - 979,451

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Prepaid equity securities contrac 253,314 (84,475) 168,83¢ 1,805,691 - 1,805,691
Loans 5,789,171 - 5,789,17. 4,185,259 - 4,185,259
8,081,729 (612,170 7,469,559 8,169,960 - 8,169,960

(1) The carrying amount regnised in the statement of financial position iepresents the Company's maximum exposure to |
risk.

(2) Of the residual net credit exposure, intercomypeross product netting arrangements are in phitieh would allow for a
additional €nil (2013: €74,643,000) to be offsettia event of default by certain Morgan Stanleynterparties.

The impact of master netting arrangements and ainaigreements on the Company’s ability to offset
financial assets and financial liabilities is des#d in note 15.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk by credit rafihg
Gross credit exposure

Credit rating 2014 2013

€'000 €'000
AA 216 1,471
A 8,081,513 8,168,489
Total 8,081,729 8,169,960

(1) Internal credit rating derived using method@sggenerally consistent with those used by extemencies

At 31 December 2014, there were no financial agsass due but not impaired or individually impaired
(2013: €nil).

Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity and funding risk refers to the risk tithe Company will be unable to finance its operatidoe to
a loss of access to the capital markets or diffjcu liquidating its assets. Liquidity and fundimnisk also
encompasses the Company’s ability to meet its Gi@nobligations without experiencing significant
business disruption or reputational damage that tm@aten its viability as a going concern.

The Company’s liquidity and funding risk managemealicies and procedures are consistent with tiodse
the Morgan Stanley Group.

The primary goal of the Company’s liquidity riskdafunding management framework is to ensure ttat th
Company has access to adequate funding acrossearamge of market conditions. The framework is
designed to enable the Company to fulfil its finahmbligations and support the execution of the
Company’s business strategies.

The following principles guide the Company’s ligitydand funding risk management framework:

« Sufficient liquid assets should be maintained t@ecamaturing liabilities and other planned and
contingent outflows;

* Maturity profile of assets and liabilities shoule kligned, with limited reliance on short-term
funding;

e Source, counterparty, currency, region and terfording should be diversified; and

e Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”) should anticipabegd account for, periods of limited access to
finding.

The Company hedges all of its issued StructurecedNuiith financial instruments entered into withesth
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings, where both tlmm@any and other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings are wholly-owned subsidiaries of thene group parent, Morgan Stanley. Further, the
maturity profile of the financial assets matches taturity profile of the financial liabilities.

Liquidity management policies

The core components of the Morgan Stanley Grougisidity management framework, which includes
consideration of the liquidity risk for each indival legal entity, are the CFP, Liquidity Stresst§eand
the Global Liquidity Reserve, which support the gam Stanley Group’s target liquidity profile.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and funding risk (continued)
Contingency Funding Plan

The CFP describes the data and information flousijtd, targets, operating environment indicators,
escalation procedures, roles and responsibiliéied,available mitigating actions in the event dfjaidity
stress. The CFP also sets forth the principal efesnof the Morgan Stanley Group’s liquidity stressting
which identifies stress events of different seyeaibhd duration, assesses current funding sourctsises
and establishes a plan for monitoring and managipgtential liquidity stress event.

Liquidity Stress Tests

The Morgan Stanley Group uses Liquidity Stress Sdet model liquidity outflows across multiple
scenarios over a range of time horizons. Theseasioancontain various combinations of idiosyncratiel
systemic stress events.

The assumptions underpinning the Liquidity Stresst3 include, but are not limited to, the following
e no government support;
e no access to equity and unsecured debt markets;
e repayment of all unsecured debt maturing withingtness horizon;
< higher haircuts and significantly lower availalyildaf secured funding;

e additional collateral that would be required bydirey counterparties, certain exchanges and
clearing organisations related to credit rating dgrades;

» additional collateral that would be required duetdlateral substitutions, collateral disputes and
uncalled collateral;

« discretionary unsecured debt buybacks;

e drawdowns on unfunded commitments provided to thadies;

« client cash withdrawals and reduction in custonm@rispositions that fund long positions;
< limited access to the foreign exchange swap markats

e maturity roll-off of outstanding letters of credavith no further issuance.

The Liquidity Stress Tests are produced for Mor§tamley and its major operating subsidiaries, dsage
at major currency levels, to capture specific gasjuirements and cash availability at various |eguities,
including a limited number of asset sales in assied environment. The Liquidity Stress Tests assiinat
subsidiaries will use their own liquidity first fand their obligations before drawing liquidity froMorgan
Stanley. It is also assumed that Morgan Stanldlyswpport its subsidiaries and will not have ascts
cash that may be held at certain subsidiaries.dtiitian to the assumptions underpinning the Lidyidi
Stress Tests, the settlement risk related to mna-settlement and clearing of securities and firn
activities is taken into consideration.

Since the Company hedges the liquidity risk offittgncial liabilities with financial assets that tola the
maturity profile of the financial liabilities, thEompany is not considered a major operating sulnsidor
the purposes of liquidity risk. However, the Compavould have access to the cash or liquidity neser
held by Morgan Stanley in the unlikely event tHatas unable to access adequate financing to seitgic
financial liabilities when they become payable.

The CFP and Liquidity Stress Tests are evaluate@romongoing basis and reported to the Firm Risk
Committee, Asset/Liability Management Committee] ather appropriate risk committees.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and funding risk (continued)

Global Liquidity Reserve

The Morgan Stanley Group maintains sufficient ldjtyi reserves (“the Global Liquidity Reserve”) to
cover daily funding needs and to meet strategiaidity targets sized by the CFP and Liquidity S¢res
Tests. The size of the Global Liquidity Reservadtively managed by the Morgan Stanley Group. The
following components are considered in sizing tHeb@l Liquidity Reserve: unsecured debt maturity
profile, balance sheet size and composition, fupdieeds in a stressed environment inclusive ofingent
cash outflows and collateral requirements. In aoldjtthe Morgan Stanley Group’s Global Liquidity
Reserve includes an additional reserve, which iimanily a discretionary surplus based on the Morgan
Stanley Group'’s risk tolerance and is subject tangle dependent on market and firm-specific events.

The Morgan Stanley Group’s Global Liquidity Reseriee which the Company has access, is held within
Morgan Stanley and its major operating subsidiadesl is composed of diversified cash and cash
equivalents and unencumbered highly liquid se@siti

Eligible unencumbered highly liquid securities g US government securities, US agency securiigs,
agency mortgage-backed securities, non-US goverhseenrities and other highly liquid investmentdga
securities.

The ability to monetise assets during a liquiditigis is critical. The Morgan Stanley Group bed#is\that
the assets held in its Global Liquidity Reserve banmonetised within five business days in a stss
environment given the highly liquid and diversifiedture of the reserves.

Funding management policies

The Morgan Stanley Group manages its funding inaamar that reduces the risk of disruption to the
Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Company’s operatioftse Morgan Stanley Group pursues a strategy of
diversification of secured and unsecured fundingreses (by product, by investor and by region) and
attempts to ensure that the tenor of the Morganl&gaGroup’s, and the Company'’s, liabilities equails
exceeds the expected holding period of the assatg linanced.

The Morgan Stanley Group funds its balance sheet ajiobal basis through diverse sources, which
includes consideration of the funding risk of edetjal entity. These sources may include the Morgan
Stanley Group’s equity capital, long-term debt, urehase agreements, securities lending, deposits,
commercial paper, letters of credit and lines @&dir The Morgan Stanley Group has active finagcin
programmes for both standard and structured predangeting global investors and currencies.

Balance sheet management

In managing both the Morgan Stanley Group’s anddbmpany’s funding risk the composition and size of
the entire balance sheet, not just financial lied, is monitored and evaluated. A substant@atipn of
the Morgan Stanley Group’s total assets consistigjoifd marketable securities arising principaligrh its
Institutional Securities business segment’s satesteading activities. The liquid nature of thesssets
provides the Morgan Stanley Group and the Compaitty flexibility in managing the size of its balance
sheet.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and funding risk (continued)
Maturity analysis

In the following maturity analysis of financial &s and financial liabilities, derivative contradiaancial
assets designated at fair value through profibss land financial liabilities designated at faitueathrough
profit or loss are disclosed according to theidiesr contractual maturity; all such amounts arespnted

at their fair value, consistent with how these ficial instruments are managed. All other amounts
represent undiscounted cash flows receivable apahba by the Company arising from its financialedss
and financial liabilities to earliest contractuahturities as at 31 December 2014 and 31 Decemti8. 20
Receipts of financial assets and repayments ohdiia liabilities that are subject to immediateioetare
treated as if notice were given immediately and elessified as on demand. This presentation is
considered by the Company to appropriately retleetliquidity risk arising from these financial assand
financial liabilities, presented in a way that isnsistent with how the liquidity risk on these fiéal
assets and financial liabilities is managed byGbenpany.

Equal to Equal to

or more or more
than one than two
year years Equal to
but less but less or more
On Less than than two than five than five
demand one year years years years Total
31 December 2014 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 510 - - - - 510
Trade receivables 24,586 - - - - 24,586
Other receivables 1,486,292 - - - - 1,486,292
Financial assets classified as held for
trading:
Derivatives 256,640 42,506 33,669 141,012 54,029 527,856
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts 46,758 52,823 94,488 56,284 2,961 253,314
Loans 1,762,868 540,084 581,343 2,155,389 749,487 5,789,171
Total financial assets 3,577,654 635,413 709,500 2,352,685 806,477 8,081,729
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates 1,195,354 - - - - 1,195,354
Trade payables 296,607 - - - - 296,607
Other payables 10,024 - - - - 10,024
Financial liabilities classified as held
for trading:
Derivatives 190,310 77,122 91,944 110,315 33,796 503,487
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Issued Structured Notes 1,855,362 558,291 617,656 2,242,370 772,681 6,046,260
Total financial liabilities 3,547,657 635,413 709,500 2,352,685 806,477 8,051,732
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and funding risk (continued)
Maturity analysis (continued)

Equal to
or more Equal to
than one or more
year than two Equal to
but less years but or more
On Less than than two less than than five
demand one year years  five years years Total
31 December 2013 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and short-term deposits 1,585 - - - - 1,585
Trade receivables 2,947 - - - - 2,947
Other receivables 1,195,027 - - - - 1,195,027
Financial assets classified as held for
trading:
Derivatives 481,555 54,372 41,334 189,957 212,233 979,451
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts 1,209,242 341,145 101,652 136,789 16,863 1,805,691
Loans 491,753 392,839 408,396 2,300,082 592,189 4,185,259
Total financial assets 3,382,109 788,356 551,382 2,626,828 821,285 8,169,960
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Convertible preferred equity certificates 1,170,579 - - - - 1,170,579
Trade payables 54,607 - - - - 54,607
Other payables 21 - - - - 21
Financial liabilities classified as held
for trading:
Derivatives 97,852 24,989 33,236 90,064 37,183 283,324
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Issued Structured Notes 2,034,623 763,367 518,146 2,536,764 784,102 6,637,002
Total financial liabilities 3,357,682 788,356 551,382 2,626,828 821,285 8,145,533

Market risk

Market risk is defined by IFRS 7 as the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financiatrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Sound market risk management is an integral pattt@fCompany’s culture. The Company is responsible
for ensuring that market risk exposures are welagad and prudent and more broadly for ensuring
transparency of material market risks, monitorimgnpliance with established limits, and escalatiisg r
concentrations to appropriate senior management.
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14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

To execute these responsibilities, the Morgan 8tafroup monitors the market risk of the firm again
limits on aggregate risk exposures, performs aetanf risk analyses, routinely reports risk sumegand
maintains the Value at Risk (“VaR”") and scenarialgsis systems. The Company is managed within the
Morgan Stanley Group’s global framework. The markek management policies and procedures of the
Company include performing risk analyses and répgrany material risks identified to appropriatey ke
management personnel of the Company.

The Company enters into the majority of its finaheisset transactions with other Morgan Stanleyu@ro
undertakings, where both the Company and the d#tengan Stanley Group undertakings are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the same group parent eiitygan Stanley.

The issued Structured Notes expose the Comparhetdgk of changes in market prices of the undeglyi
securities, interest rate risk and, where denormthat currencies other than Euros, the risk of gharn
rates of exchange between the Euro and the ottexare currencies. The Company uses the contriats t

it purchases from other Morgan Stanley Group uld@rgs to hedge the market price, interest rate and
foreign currency risks associated with the issuarfabe Structured Notes, consistent with the Camgfsa
risk management strategy. As such, the Companytiserposed to any market risk on these financial
instruments.

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING

In order to manage credit exposure arising fronbitsiness activities, the Company applies varioadit
risk management policies and procedures, see mbterifurther details. Primarily in connection it
derivative contracts, prepaid equity securitiestiamots and issued Structured Notes, the Compargrsent
into master netting arrangements and collaterangements with its counterparties. These agreements
provide the Company with the right, in the ordinargurse of business and/ or in the event of a
counterparty default (such as bankruptcy or a opaftty’s failure to pay or perform), to net a
counterparty’s rights and obligations under suafe@gent and, in the event of counterparty defaattpff
collateral held by the Company against the net athowed by the counterparty. However, in certain
circumstances, the Company may not have such aemmgnt in place; the relevant insolvency regime
(which is based on type of counterparty entity #redjurisdiction of organisation of the countergarnay

not support the enforceability of the agreement;the Company may not have sought legal advice to
support the enforceability of the agreement. Isesavhere the Company has not determined an agneeme
to be enforceable, the related amounts are nogtoiffisthe tabular disclosures. The enforceabilityhe
master netting agreement is taken into accounthm €ompany’s risk management practices and
application of counterparty credit limits.

In the statement of financial position, financiakats and financial liabilities are only offset gdsented
on a net basis where there is a current legallpreafble right to set off the recognised amounts am
intention to either settle on a net basis or tligedhe asset and the liability simultaneously.tHe absence
of such conditions, financial assets and finarli@ailities are presented on a gross basis.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING

(CONTINUED)

The following tables present information about diftsetting of financial instruments and relatediaigral
amounts. The effect of master netting arrangementiateral agreements and other credit enhancesment
on the Company’s exposure to credit risk is disados note 14.

Net amounts
presented in the
statement of

Amounts offset in
the statement of

Amounts not offset in the
statement of financial
position® @ © ©

Gross  financial position financial Financial Cash Net
amounts® @ position instruments  collateral  exposurd”
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
31 December 2014
Assets
Financial assets classified
held for trading:
Derivatives 527,856 - 527,856 (483,856) (43,839) 161
Financial assets designate
at fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securitie
contracts 343,974 (90,660) 253,314 (84,475) - 168,839
TOTAL 871,830 (90,660) 781,170 (568,331) (43,839 169,000
Liabilities
Financial liabilities classifie
as held for trading:
Derivatives 503,487 - 503,487  (483,856) - 19,631
Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Issued Structured notes g 136 920 (90,660) 6,046,260 (84,475) - 5,961,785
TOTAL 6,640,407 (90,660) 6,549,747 (568,331) - 5,981,416

(1) Amounts include €161,000 of financial assets clesbsias held for trading — derivatives, €168,88® of financial assets designate:
fair value through profit or loss - prepaid equscurities contracts and €4,875,280 of financial liabilities designated at fairlwa
through profit or loss issued Structured Notes which are either not sulifieanaster netting agreements or are subject ¢th
agreements but the Company has not determinedjteeraents to be legally enforceable.

(2) Amounts are reported on a net basis in the stateaidimancial position when there is a legally emeable master nettirgrangemer
that provides for the current right of offsatd there is an intention to either settle on abaeis or to realise the asset and liak
simultaneously.

(3) Amounts relate to master netting arrangements whisle been determined by the Company to be legafiyrceable, but do noteet
all criteria required for net presentation withire tstatement of financial position.
(4) The cash collateral is recognised in the statemigiimancial position within trade payables.

(5) Certain trade receivables and payables that ar@msented newithin the statement of financial position havedky enforceabl
master netting agreements or similar arrangemargtace which would allow for an additional €22,2Z810 to be offset in the event
default.

(6) Amounts relate to intercompany crqe®duct master netting arrangements, which inctidse amounts where the Morgan Sta
Group undertaking from which the Company purchadkedbrepaid equity securities contracts is alschthider of the issuedt®icturec
Notes. These arrangemehtsve been determined by the Company to be legaftyr@able but do not meet all the criteria reqiie
net presentation within the statement of finangasition.

(7) Of the residual net exposure, intercompany crosstmt legally enforceable nitt) arrangements are in place which would allowefia
additional €nil to be offset in the ordinary cout§dusiness and/ or in the event of default.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBJECT TO OFFSETTING
(CONTINUED)

Amounts not
Net amounts  offset in the
Amounts presented in  statement of

offset in the the financial
statement of statement of position®®®
Gross financial financial Financial Net
Amounts®  position ® position instruments exposure®
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
31 December 2013
Assets
Financial assets classified as he
for trading:
Derivatives 979,451 - 979,451 (283,324 696,127
Financial assets designated at f
value through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities
contracts 1,837,348 (31,657 1,805,691 (1,313,717 491,974
TOTAL 2,816,799 (31,657 2,785,142 (1,597,041 1,188,101
Liabilities
Financial liabilities classified as
held for trading:
Derivatives 283,324 - 283,324 (283,324 -
Financial liabilities designated ai
fair value through profit or
loss:
Issued Structured Notes 6,668,659 (31,657 6,637,002 (1,313,717 5,323,285
TOTAL 6,951,983 (31,657 6,920,326 (1,597,041 5,323,285

(1) Amounts include €55,781,000 of financial assetssifeed as held for trading — derivative®491,974,000 of financial ass
designated at fair value through profit or lossegaid equity securities contracts &%J008,237,000 of financial liabilities designa
at fair value through profit or loss - issued Stimwmed Notes which are eithertrgubject to master netting agreements or are cutaj
such agreements but the Company has not deteritisedjreements to be legally enforceable.

(2) Amounts are reported on a net basis in the statewiefinancial position when there is a legakyforceable master netti
arrangement that provides for the current righaftfet and there is an intention to either setti@aet basis or to rgse the asset ar
liability simultaneously.

(3) Amounts relate to master netting arrangements whak been determined by the Company to be legallpreaéble, but do n
meet all criteria required for net presentatiorhimithe statement of financial position.

(4) Certain trade receivables and payables that ar@nesented net within the statement of financiaitpm have legally ewfceable
master netting agreements or similar arrangemergkace which would allow for an additional €2,28W) to be offset ithe event o
default.

(5) Amounts relate to intercompany crga®duct master netting arrangements, which incthdese amounts where the Morgan Sta
Group undertaking from which the Company purchathed prepaid equity securities contracts is also hbleler of the issue
Structured Notes. These arrangements have beemétetd by the Company to be legally enforceabledaubot meet all the critexi
required for net presentation within the stateneétihancial position.

Of the residual net exposure, intercompany cpsestuct legally enforceable netting arrangemergsraplace which would allow fc
an additional €74,643,000 to be offset in the adjrcourse of business and/ or in the event ofuliefa

G

~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2014

16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised a&if value on a recurring basis

The following tables present the carrying valughef Company’s financial assets and financial liaed
recognised at fair value on a recurring basissdiasl according to the fair value hierarchy.

2014 Valuation
Valuation techniques
Quoted techniques with
prices in using significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets classified as held for trading:
Derivatives - 456,134 71,722 527,856
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts - 251,342 1,972 253,314
Loans - 5,789,171 - 5,789,171
Total financial assets measured at fair value - 6,496,647 73,694 6,570,341
Financial liabilities classified as held for
trading:
Derivatives - 462,770 40,717 503,487
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Certificates and warrants - 2,153,606 - 2,153,606
Notes - 3,481,620 411,034 3,892,654
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - 6,097,966 451,751 6,549,747
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Year ended 31 December 2014

16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)
a. Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis (continued)
2013 Valuation
Valuation techniques
Quoted techniques with
prices in using significant
active  observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Financial assets classified as held for trading:
Derivatives - 879,030 100,421 979,451
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts - 1,778,994 26,697 1,805,691
Loans - 4,185,259 - 4,185,259
Total financial assets measured at fair value - 6,843,283 127,118 6,970,401
Financial liabilities classified as held for tragin
Derivatives - 274,718 8,606 283,324
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
Certificates and warrants - 2,536,200 - 2,536,200
Notes - 3,679,098 421,704 4,100,802
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value - 6,490,016 430,310 6,920,326
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Year ended 31 December 2014

16.
a.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)
Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis (continued)

The Company’s valuation approach and fair valueranidy categorisation for financial instruments
recognised at fair value on a recurring basis ®kswvs:

Financial assets and financial liabilities classifi as held for trading

Derivatives

OTC derivative contractOTC derivative contracts include forward, swap aption contracts related
to interest rates, foreign currencies, equity gricecommodity prices.

Depending on the product and the terms of the aeti, the fair value of OTC derivative products
can be either observed or modelled using a sefi¢scbniques, and model inputs from comparable
benchmarks, including closed-form analytic formuksch as the Black-Scholes option-pricing model,
and simulation models or a combination thereof. nigricing models do not entail material
subjectivity because the methodologies employechaonecessitate significant judgement, and the
pricing inputs are observed from actively quotedkets, as is the case for generic interest ratpswa
certain option contracts and certain CDSs. Indhge of more established derivative products, the
pricing models used by the Company are widely aecefpy the financial services industry. A
substantial majority of OTC derivative productsued using pricing models fall into this categorglan
are categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hielngr

Other derivative products, including complex praduthat have become illiquid, require more
judgement in the implementation of the valuatioohtéque applied due to the complexity of the
valuation assumptions and the reduced observaldfitinputs. In these instances where significant
inputs are unobservable, they are categorisedvellof the fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets and financial liabilities desigadtat fair value through profit or loss

Prepaid equity securities contracts and issued @tmed Notes

The Company issues Structured Notes and purchasesi@ equity securities contracts that have
coupons or repayment terms linked to the performafadebt or equity securities, indices, currencies
or commodities. Fair value of Structured Notes pnepaid equity securities contracts is determined
using valuation models for the derivative and dattions of the notes. These models incorporate
observable inputs referencing identical or complaralecurities, including prices to which the notes
are linked, interest rate yield curves, option tibtg and currency, and commodity or equity prices
Independent, external and traded prices for theshate considered as well. The impact of own tredi
spreads is also included based on observed segobdad market spreads. Most prepaid equity
securities contracts are categorised in Level th@ffair value hierarchy. In instances where sigaift
inputs are unobservable, they are categorised welL2 of the fair value hierarchy. Further detail i
relation to the issued Structured Notes is incluoeldw.
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16.
a.

b.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)
Financial assets and liabilities recognised aaif value on a recurring basis (continued)

Issued Structured Notes

Notes. Notes give a risk exposure tailored to market gieamd risk appetite and mainly provide
exposure to the underlying single name equity, tggudex or portfolio of equities. Typically, the
redemption payment of the note is significantly elegent on the value of embedded equity
derivatives. In general, call and put options, tdigoptions, straddles and callability features are
combined to create a bespoke coupon rate or redmmpayoff for each note issuance, with risk
exposure to one or more equity underlyings or ieslicThe Company values the embedded derivatives
using market standard models, which are assessepfwopriateness at least annually. Model inputs,
such as equity forward rates, equity implied vditgtand equity correlations, are marked such that

fair value of the derivatives match prices obselewab the inter-dealer markets. In arriving at fair
value, the Company uses discount rates approfddtee funding rates specific to the instrument. In
general, this results in overnight rates being usediscount the Company assets and liabilities. In
addition, since the notes bear Morgan Stanley'ditrisk, the Company considers this when assessing
the fair value of the notes, by adjusting the distaates to reflect the prevailing credit spreaitha
reporting date.

The Company has a small number of notes where dhb fftows due on the notes is dependent on
embedded derivatives linked to the interest rateeifin exchange or commodity markets. The
Company values these notes in the same way asqfotydinked notes, by using market standard

models and marking the inputs to match prices olskin the inter-dealer OTC markets. Similarly to

equity-linked notes, these issuances bear MorganleSt's credit risk, and the valuation is assessed
accordingly. Most notes are categorised in Levelf 2he fair value hierarchy. In instances where
significant inputs are unobservable, they are categd in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Certificates and warrantsCertificates and warrants provide exposure touthderlying single name
equity, equity index or portfolio of equities. Th#yerefore provide risk exposure to the value ef th
underlying position and to the dividends paid oceieed. The Company values the underlying
position using observable data where availableiffstance, exchange closing prices), or alternigtive
using information from third parties (for exampletasset values obtained from fund administrators)
or using Morgan Stanley’s own valuation assumptidn®quired. The Company estimates future
dividend payments using a variety of available deteluding market prices for forwards and futures,
analytical review and estimates of future tax ratesorporating the Company’s own assumptions
where required. The certificates and warrants tgpically be redeemed at short notice and so the
certificates and warrants provide minimal expostwethe credit risk of Morgan Stanley. The
certificates and warrants are categorised in L2l the fair value hierarchy.

Loans

The fair value of loans to other Morgan Stanley ipraindertakings is estimated based on the present
value of expected future cash flows using its lessimate of interest rate yield curves. The loams a
categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the faivalue hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities recognised at fair value on a recurringbasis

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Lewad the fair value hierarchy during the current and
prior year.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabilts recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

The following tables present the changes in thevaiue of the Company’s Level 3 financial assetd a
financial liabilities for the years ended 31 Decem®014 and 31 December 2013. Level 3 instrumeafs m
be hedged with instruments classified in Level &.aresult, the realised and unrealised gainss€k)sfor
assets and liabilities within the Level 3 categprgsented in the tables below do not reflect thated
realised and unrealised gains/ (losses) on hedgstguments that have been classified by the Compan
within the Level 2 category.

Additionally, both observable and unobservable fapnay be used to determine the fair value of jorst
that the Company has classified within the LevelaBegory. As a result, the unrealised gains/ (E)sse
during the period for assets and liabilities withire Level 3 category presented in the tables belay
include changes in fair value during the period thare attributable to both observable (e.g., ckarig
market interest rates) and unobservable (e.g.,gg%im unobservable long-dated volatilities) inputs

The Morgan Stanley Group operates a number of-groap policies to ensure that, where possible,
revenues and related costs are matched. Wherteattiag positions included in the below table ask r
managed using financial instruments held by otherddn Stanley Group undertakings, these policies
potentially result in the recognition of offsettiggins or losses in the Company.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT

INUED)

c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabiks recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

2014

Financial assets classified
as held for trading:

Net derivative contract§”
Equity

Financial assets designated
at fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities
contracts

Total financial assets
measured at fair value

Financial liabilities designate

at fair value through
profit or loss:

Notes

Total financial liabilities
measured at fair value

Unrealised
gains or
(losses) for
level 3 assets

Total gains o Net /liabilities
(losses transfers outstanding
Balance recognised il inand /ol Balance a as at 31
atl statement ¢ b @ é out of 31 December
I

Januan comprehensiv 5 § 2L Level 3 Decembe 2014
2014 income® & 8 > @ 2014 ®
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
91,815 (19,577) - - (39,885)  (1,348) 31,005 (16,810)
26,697 461 962 - (23,239)  (2,909) 1,972 (153)
118,512 (19,116) 962 - (63,124)  (4,257) 32,977 (16,963)
(421,704 8,334 - (153,682, 105,346 50,672 (411,034 (121)
(421,704 8,334 - (153,682, 105,346 50,672 (411,034 (121)

(1) The total gains or (losses) are recognisetiérstatement of comprehensive income as detailt#tkifinancial instruments aaoating policy

(note 3c).

(2) For financial assets and financial liabilittast were transferred into and out of Level 3 dyine year, gains ord$ses) are presented a
the assets or liabilities had been transferredantout of Level 3 as at the beginning of the year.

(3) Amounts represent unrealised gains or (lossesthe year ended 31 December 2014 related tdsaase liabilities stiloutstanding at 3
December 2014. The unrealised gains or (lossespaognised in the statementosimprehensive income as detailed in the finanoigthiment:

accounting policy (note 3c).

(4) Net derivative contracts represent Financiaktsclassified as held for tradinglerivative contracts net of Financial liabilitidassified a:
held for trading — derivative contracts.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabiks recognised at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

During the current year, the Company reclassifiggraximately €312,000 of net derivative contracatd a
€40,214,000 of issued Structured Notes from Leveb 2 evel 3. The reclassifications were due to a
reduction in the volume of recently executed tratiesas or a lack of available broker quotes forsthe
instruments, such that certain significant inpugsame unobservable.

During the current year, the Company reclassifipdraximately €1,660,000 of net derivative contracts
€2,909,000 of prepaid equity securities contrant$€90,886,000 of issued Structured Notes from Lave
to Level 2. The reclassifications were due to thailability of market quotations for these or cormrgdae
instruments, or available broker quotes, or consertata such that certain significant inputs became
observable.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT

INUED)

c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabiks recognised at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

2013

Financial assets classified
as held for trading:
Net derivative contract§”
Equity

Financial assets designated
at fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities
contracts

Total financial assets
measured at fair value

Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:

Notes

Total financial liabilities
measured at fair value

Unrealised

gains or

(losses) for
level 3 assets

Total gains o Net lliabilities
(losses transfers outstanding
Balance recognised il inand /o Balance a as at 31
atl statement ¢ b @ é out of 31 December
©
January comprehensiv S § 2 Level 3 Decembe 2013
2013 income® & 3 8 @ 2013 @
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
94,656 33,363 - - (40,850) 4,646 91,815 3,486
43,440 3,811 8,052 - (30,021) 1,415 26,697 2,285
138,096 37,174 8,052 - (70,871) 6,061 118,512 5,771
(841,531 (24,496) - (234,652 146,163 532,812 (421,704 (18,264)
(841,531 (24,496) - (234,652, 146,163 532,812 (421,704 (18,264)

(1) The total gains or (losses) are recognisetiérstatement of comprehensive income as detailt#tkifinancial instruments aaoating policy

(note 3c).

(2) For financial assets and financial liabilittasit were transferred into and out of Level 3 dyitine year, gains org$ses) are presented a
the assets or liabilities had been transferredantout of Level 3 as at the beginning of the year.
(3) Amounts represent unrealised gains or (lossesthe year ended 31 December 2013 related tdsaasd liabilities stiloutstanding at 3
December 2013. The unrealised gains or (losseskeognised in the statementosimprehensive income as detailed in the finanogthument:

accounting policy (note 3c).

(4) Net derivative contracts represent Financiabsclassified as held for tradinglerivative contracts net of Financial liabilitieassified a:
held for trading — derivative contracts.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

c. Changes in Level 3 financial assets and liabiks recognised at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

During the prior year, the Company reclassified ragjmately €736,000 of net derivative contracts,
€2,366,000 of prepaid equity securities contrants€19,527,000 of issued Structured Notes from L2ve
to Level 3. The reclassifications were due to aictidn in the volume of recently executed transenstior

a lack of available broker quotes for these instmi®, such that certain significant inputs became
unobservable.

During the prior year, the Company reclassified ragjpnately €5,382,000 of net derivative contracts,
€951,000 of prepaid equity securities contracts €6R2,339,000 of issued Structured Notes from L8vel
to Level 2. The reclassifications were due toahailability of market quotations for these or carable
instruments, or available broker quotes, or conserdata such that certain significant inputs became
observable.

d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiies recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis

The disclosures below provide information on thesgi#vity of fair value measurements to key inpatsl
assumptions.

1. Quantitative information about and qualitative seéwvisy of significant unobservable inputs

The tables below provide information on the valoatiechniques, significant unobservable inputs
and their ranges and averages for each major aatefassets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis with a significant Level 3dveale.

The level of aggregation and breadth of productssedhe range of inputs to be wide and not evenly
distributed across the inventory. Further, thegeaaf unobservable inputs may differ across firms i
the financial services industry because of diversitthe types of products included in each firm's
inventory. The following disclosures also incluggalitative information on the sensitivity of the
fair value measurements to changes in the signifisaobservable inputs.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiiies recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

2014 Significant unobservable
input(s)/ Sensitivity of the
Fair Valuation fair value to changes in the
Value technique(s) unobservable inputs Range® Averages?®
€'000
ASSETS

Financial assets classified
as held for trading:

Net derivative contract§?

Equity® 31,005 Option model At the money volatility / (B) (C) 20%t039%  27%
Volatility skew / (B) (C) -1% to 1% -1%
Equity - Equity correlation / (B) (C) 40% to 90% 60%
Equity - Foreign exchange -70% to 56%  -27%
correlation / (B) (C)
Net asset value NAV value / (A) (C) 100% 100%
("NAV")
Financial assets designated a
fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities 1,972 Option model At the money volatility / (A) (C) 15% to 31% 20%
contracts Volatility skew / (A) (C) -1% to 0% 0%
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities designatec
at fair value through
profit or loss:
Notes (411,034, Option model At the money volatility / (B) (C) 15% to 39% 27%
Volatility skew / (B) (C) -1% to 1% -1%
Equity - Equity correlation / (B) (C) 40% to 90% 60%
Equity - Foreign exchange -70% to 56%  -27%

correlation / (B) (C)

NAV NAV value / (A) (C) 100% 100%

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiakss classified as held for tradinglerivative contracts net of financial liabilitielssified
as held for trading — derivative contracts.

(2) The ranges of significant unobservable inputésrapresented in percentages.

(3) Amounts represent weighted averages which ateulated by weighting each input by the fair vahfethe respective fineial
instruments except for derivative instruments whiepets are weighted by risk.

(4) Includes derivative contracts with multipleksg(i.e. hybrid products)

Sensitivity of the fair value to changes in the urtaservable inputs:

(A) Significant increase/ (decrease) in the unolzgae input in isolation would result in a signéialy higher/ (lower) fair value
measurement.

(B) Significant increase/ (decrease) in the unolzgge input in isolation would result in a signditly lower/ (higher) fair value
measurement.

(C) There are no predictable relationships betwkersignificant unobservable inputs.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)
d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiiies recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)
2013 Significant unobservable
input(s)/ Sensitivity of the
Fair Valuation fair value to changes in the
Value technique(s) unobservable inputs Range® Averages?®
€000
ASSETS
Financial assets classified
as held for trading:
Net derivative contract§’
Equity® 91,815 Option model At the money volatility / (B) (C) 19% to 31% 23%
Volatility skew / (B) (C) -1% to 0% -1%
Equity - Equity correlation / (A) (C) 45% to 96% 73%
Equity - Foreign exchange -75% to 45% -31%
correlation / (B) (C)
Net asset valu: NAV value / (A) (C) €0 - €88 €46
("NAV")
Financial assets designated a
fair value through
profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities 26,697 Option model At the money volatility / (A) (C) 16% to 25% 20%
contracts Volatility skew / (A) (C) -1% to 0% -1%
Equity - Equity correlation / (B) (C) 24% to 95% 65%
CDS model Funding spread / (B) (C) 96bps to 147bps 129bps
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities designated
at
fair value through profit or
loss:
Notes (421,704 Option model At the money volatility / (B) (C) 15% to 42% 21%
Volatility skew / (B) (C) -2% to 0% -1%
Equity - Equity correlation / (B) (C) 46% to 96% 74%
Equity - Foreign exchange -70% to 30% -31%
correlation / (B) (C)
NAV NAV value / (A) (C) €0-€88 €46

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiakés classified as held for trading — derivativet@ets net of financial liabilities classified as
held for trading — derivative contracts.

(2) The ranges of significant unobservable inputsrapresented in percentages or bps. A basis egirgtls 1/100th of 1%; for example, 1,004
basis points would equal 10.04%.

(3) Amounts represent weighted averages whichaoelated by weighting each input by the fair vaddi¢he respective financial instruments
except for derivative instruments where inputsveeghted by risk.

(4) Includes derivative contracts with multiplekss(i.e. hybrid products)

Sensitivity of the fair value to changes in the urfaservable inputs:

(A) Significant increase/ (decrease) in the unolkegle input in isolation would result in a signéittly higher/ (lower) fair value measurement.
(B) Significant increase/ (decrease) in the unolzgge input in isolation would result in a signdialy lower/ (higher) fair value measurement.
(C) There are no predictable relationships betwikersignificant unobservable inputs.
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16.
d.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiiies recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

The following provides a description of significaimobservable inputs included in the table aboveafio
major categories of assets and liabilities:

Correlation — a pricing input where the payoff is driven by exdhan one underlying risk.
Correlation is a measure of the relationship beitwbe movements of two variables (i.e. how the
change in one variable influences a change in therosariable). The correlation ranges may be
wide since any two underlying inputs may be higtdyrelated (either positively or negatively) or
weakly correlated.

Volatility — the measure of the variability in possible resufor an instrument given how much
that instrument changes in value over time. Vatgtis a pricing input for options and, generally,
the lower the volatility, the less risky the optidrhe level of volatility used in the valuation &f
particular option depends on a number of factarsluding the nature of the risk underlying that
option (e.g the volatility of a particular underlying equiteaurity may be significantly different
from that of a particular underlying commodity indlethe tenor and the strike price of the option.
Volatility skew— the measure of the difference in implied volstilior options with identical
underliers and expiry dates but with differentksts. The implied volatility for an option with a
strike price that is above or below the currentg@mf an underlying asset will typically deviate
from the implied volatility for an option with arsite price equal to the current price of that same
underlying asset.

Funding spread- the difference between the interbank funding eaté a specific bank funding
rate. Embedded within this spread is the cost ef dptionality for the client to put back
certificates at any time to be repaid at par.

Sensitivity of fair values to changing signifit@ssumptions to reasonably possible alternatives

All financial instruments are valued in accordamdth the techniques outlined in the fair value
hierarchy. Some of these techniques, includingehased to value instruments categorised in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, are dependentnobservable parameters and the fair value
for these financial instruments has been determiséty parameters appropriate for the valuation
methodology based on prevailing market evidenceé. is Irecognised that the unobservable
parameters could have a range of reasonably pessiernative values.

In estimating the change in fair value, to providermation about the variability of the fair value
measurement, the unobservable parameters weredvémiethe extremes of the ranges of
reasonably possible alternatives using statistieehniques, such as dispersion in comparable
observable external inputs for similar asset cklshéstoric data or judgement if a statistical
technique is not appropriate. Where a financiatrimsent has more than one unobservable
parameter, the sensitivity analysis reflects theatgst reasonably possible increase or decrease to
fair value by varying the assumptions individuallyis unlikely that all unobservable parameters
would be concurrently at the extreme range of fdessilternative assumptions and therefore the
sensitivity shown below is likely to be greaterritthe actual uncertainty relating to the financial
instruments.

The following tables present the sensitivity of ttaér value of Level 3 financial assets and
financial liabilities to reasonably possible alt&time assumptions, providing quantitative
information on the potential variability of the faialue measurement.
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)

d. Valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liahiiies recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

Effect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

2014 Increase infair  Decrease in fail
Fair value value value
€'000 €'000 €'000

Financial assets classified as held for tradin
Net derivative contract$
Equity 31,005 425 (2,271)

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:

Prepaid equity securities contracts 1,972 2 (90)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Notes (411,034 (427) 2,361

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiakés classified as held for trading — derivativet@rts net of financial liabilities
classified as held for trading — derivative contisac

Effect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

2013 Increase in fair Decrease in fait
Fair value value value
€'000 €'000 €'000

Financial assets classified as held for tradin
Net derivative contract$
Equity 91,815 1,548 (1,991)

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Prepaid equity securities contracts 26,697 322 (368)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Notes (421,704 (1,870) 2,359

(1) Net derivative contracts represent financiakés classified as held for trading — derivativet@xts net of financial liabilities
classified as held for trading — derivative contsac
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16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONT INUED)
e. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oa non-recurring basis

Non-recurring fair value measurements of assetdiahilities are those which are required or peteditin
the statement of financial position in particulacemstances. There were no assets or liabilitieasured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis during tharyor prior year.

17. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

For all financial instruments not measured at featue, the carrying amount is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value due to thartsterm nature of these assets and liabilities.

18. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Morgan Stanley Group manages its capital otolag basis with consideration for its legal emgtti
The capital managed by the Morgan Stanley Groumdiyoincludes ordinary share capital, preference
share capital, subordinated loans and reserves.

The Morgan Stanley Group’s required capital (“ReediCapital”) estimation is based on the Required
Capital Framework, an internal capital adequacysuea This framework is a risk-based and leverage u
of capital measure, which is compared with the Mar&tanley Group’s regulatory capital to ensuré tha
the Morgan Stanley Group maintains an amount ohgaoncern capital after absorbing potential losses
from extreme stress events where applicable, airt jn time. The Morgan Stanley Group defines the
difference between its regulatory capital and agate Required Capital as Parent capital.

The Required Capital Framework will evolve over dinm response to changes in the business and
regulatory environment and to incorporate enhanoésne modelling techniques. The Morgan Stanley
Group will continue to evaluate the framework wigéispect to the impact of future regulatory requiats,

as appropriate.

The Morgan Stanley Group actively manages its dateed capital position based upon, among other
things, business opportunities, risks, capital labdity and rates of return together with intermalpital
policies, regulatory requirements and rating ageqagelines and, therefore, in the future may expan
contract its capital base to address the changiedsof its businesses.

The Morgan Stanley Group determines the appropliatel of capital at a legal entity level to safagl
that entity’s ability to continue as a going comceand ensure that it meets all regulatory capital
requirements, so that it can continue to providerns for the Morgan Stanley Group.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struetas described above, the Company may adjust tbargm
of dividends paid, return capital to shareholdessje new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages the following items as capital:

2014 2013

€'000 €'000

Share capital 15,018 15,018
Reserves 15,052 10,059
30,070 25,077
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Parent and ultimate controlling entity

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Angdes Investments Codperatieve U.A. which is
registered in The Netherlands.

The ultimate parent undertaking and controllingitgrdnd the largest group of which the Company is a
member and for which group financial statements @epared is Morgan Stanley. Morgan Stanley is
incorporated in the state of Delaware, the UniteateS of America and copies of its financial staats
can be obtained from www.morganstanley.com/investations.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are defined as thosensehswing authority and responsibility for planning
directing and controlling the activities of the Coamy. Key management personnel include the Bofrd o
Directors of the Company plus key business unitagament.

Compensation paid to key management personnespeot of their services rendered to the Company is:

2014 2013
€'000 €'000
Short-term employee benefits 25 22
Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payments 3 4
Other long-term employee benefits 3 2
TMF management fees 281 424
313 453

The share-based payment costs disclosed abovetréfée amortisation of equity-based awards gratded
key management personnel over the last three pearsre therefore not directly aligned with othiaiffs
costs in the current year.

Key management personnel compensation is borneghgr Morgan Stanley Group undertakings in both
the current and prior year.

Transactions with related parties

The Morgan Stanley Group conducts business fontsliglobally through a combination of both functibn

and legal entity organisational structures. Acawgtii, the Company is closely integrated with the
operations of the Morgan Stanley Group and entsis transactions with other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings on an arm’s length basis for the pgep®f utilising financing, trading and risk manageat,

and infrastructure services. The nature of theldionships along with information about the teoi®ns

and outstanding balances is given below. The Cognpas not recognised any expense and has made no
provision for impairment relating to the amounbaotstanding balances from related parties (2018). €n

In addition, the management and execution of bgsistrategies on a global basis results in manygdtor
Stanley transactions impacting a number of MorgéamI8y Group undertakings. The Morgan Stanley
Group operates a number of intra-group policiesrtsure that, where possible, revenues and relatsd ¢
are matched. For the year ended 31 December 2014t $oss of €1,135,000 was recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income arising from sagbnue transfer pricing policies (2013: net gafin
€14,607,000).
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties (continued)

Funding

The Company receives general funding from and pes/ifunding to other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings.

General funding is undated, unsecured, floating fanhding. Funding may be received or provided for
specific transaction related funding requiremeott$pr general operational purposes. The inteass are
established by the Morgan Stanley Group Treasumgtfan for all entities within the Morgan Stanley
Group and approximate the market rate of intedest the Morgan Stanley Group incurs in funding its
business.

Other funding

Other funding includes CPECs issued to the Comgadtiyect parent undertaking, Archimedes Investments
Cobperatieve U.A.. The specific terms of the relatield are detailed in note 8.

Details of the outstanding balances on these fundimangements and the related interest income or
expense recognised in the statement of compretemsoome during the year are shown in the table
below:

2014 2013
Interest Balance Interest Balance
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Amounts due from the Company’s indirect
parent undertaking 24,549 1,193,364 24,788 1,068,859
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings 383 292,928 766 126,168
24,932 1,486,292 25,554 1,195,027
Amounts due to the Company’s direct
parent undertaking 24,775 1,195,354 25,384 1,170,579
Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings 9 10,024 - 21
24,784 1,205,378 25,384 1,170,600
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19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties (continued)
Trading and risk management

The Company issues Structured Notes and hedgebligations arising from the issuance by enterirtg i
prepaid equity securities contracts, derivativetiaats and loans designated at fair value throughitpor
loss with other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings.such transactions are entered into on an arm’s
length basis. The total amounts receivable andlpaym issued Structured Notes, prepaid equityrgees.
contracts, derivative contracts and loans desigratéair value through profit or loss were asdai:

2014 2013
€'000 €'000

Amounts due from the Company’s indirect parent utadéngs on
unsettled securities and derivative transactions - 13,379
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley Group undértss 6,594,927 6,959,969

6,594,927 6,973,348

Amounts due to the Company’s indirect parent uradémgs on
unsettled securities and derivative transactions 2,585 9,291
Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley Group undentgki 2,112,114 2,097,213
2,114,699 2,106,504

Included in the table above is an amount of €25010 (2013: €nil) in relation to an obligationreturn
collateral received from another Morgan Stanley Uprandertaking to mitigate credit risk on exposures
arising under derivatives contracts between the fizmy and other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings.

Infrastructure services

The Company uses infrastructure services incluttiegorovision of office facilities, operated by eth
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings at no charge.
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Independent auditor’s report

The independent auditor’s report is recorded omthé page.

Statutory rules concerning appropriation of the netresult

The Articles of Association of the Company provitiat the net result for the year is at the dispmsiof
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Distribution can only be made to the extent that $fhareholder's equity exceeds the reserves prbvaie
by the Articles of Association. The Board of Direct must grant its approval which it can only wilthin
the event that it knows or reasonably should han@k that, following the distribution, the Companifi
not be able to continue with the payments of itstei®ecoming due and payable in the foreseeahlesfut
Appropriation of the net result for the year

The statement of financial position is presentddrahe proposed appropriation of net result far year
ended 31 December 2014. The Directors proposed@adit to the statement of comprehensive income a
part of the equity shareholders’ funds.

Subsequent events

There have been no significant events since thertieg date.
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Independent auditor's report
To: the Shareholders Morgan Stanley B.V.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 2014

Our Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2014 of Morgan Stanley B.V. (the
Company), based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Morgan Stanley B.V. as at 31 December 2014, and of its result and its cash flows for
2014 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The company financial statements comprise:

1. the company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014;

2. the following statements for 2014: statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended,;

3. the notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basis for our Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Our
responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report.

We are independent of Morgan Stanley B.V. in accordance with the “Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten” (ViO) and other relevant
independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the
“Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants” (VGBA).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Materiality

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

Deloitte Accountants B.V. is registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce and Member of
Industry in Rotterdam number 24362853. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Based on our professional judgement we determined the materiality for the financial statements
as a whole at EUR 80,588,030. The materiality is based on 1% of the total assets. We have also
taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material
for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the Board of Directors that misstatements in excess of EUR 1,611,761 which are
identified during the audit would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in
our view must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Our Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the
Board of Directors. The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters
discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Financial Instruments, including valuation and accounting

Key Audit Matter

The risk associated with the valuation assertion relates to the valuation of fair value hierarchy
level 3 issuances because this can require significant management judgement. We note that
although the entity does not apply hedge accounting, it reduces profit and loss volatility through
economic hedging and recording the financial instruments held on the balance at fair value.

Valuation of level 3 financial instruments often requires the usage of bespoke valuation models
and unobservable inputs to determine the fair value which can be highly subjective. The
valuations of these instruments are typically more complex and may not be readily observable
due to illiquid markets or low trading volumes, and accordingly, are more difficult to estimate.
The subjectivity involved in the valuation of level 3 inventory means there is an inherently
greater risk of material misstatement.

Reference is made to note 3.d and note 16 of the financial statements of Morgan Stanley B.V. as
per December 31, 2014.
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Response

Our testing over the valuation assertion has included procedures in relation to the controls over
positions carried at fair value, procedures in relation to model controls and the performance of
substantive testing through independent revaluations, methodology reviews and testing of key
inputs for a sample of positions As part of these procedures we challenged management
assumptions in the determination of the valuation models with the support of internal financial
instrument valuation experts.

Based on the work performed we observed that the hedge of the financial assets and financial
liabilities does not net to nil at December 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013. This is due to the
holding of cash and short-term deposits, and also pending trades which are included within trade
receivables and trade payables. When these balances are included the trading balance sheet nets
flat. We have performed a reconciliation to confirm this.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation
of the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting
frameworks mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Management should disclose events
and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as

a going concern in the financial statements.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Our Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.
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Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we
may not have detected all errors and fraud. We have exercised professional judgment and have
maintained professional scepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on
Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit included e.qg.:

¢ Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company ceasing to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures; and

¢ Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or, in extremely rare circumstances, when
non-mentioning is in the public interest.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the management board report and the other information
Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our
obligation to report about the management board report and other information):

¢ We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the management
board report, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and whether the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code has been annexed.

¢ We report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with
the financial statements.

Engagement

We were engaged by the Board of Directors as auditor of Morgan Stanley B.V. for 2014 on 11
February 2015, and we have been the auditor of Morgan Stanley B.V. as of year 2001.
Amsterdam, April 28, 2015

Deloitte Accountants B.V.

Signed on the original: M. van Luijk
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